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AB 529 ADAPTIVE REUSE WORKING GROUP 
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION TEMPLATE GUIDELINE 

The following guideline is intended to facilitate stakeholder  feedback  to HCD’s Request for   
Information  (RFI)  on adaptive reuse. In order  to ensure feedback can be organized and accurately  
reflected  in  HCD’s  findings,  please  fill  out  a  separate  form  for  each  individual  recommendation  that 
you are proposing. Responses are due by  5:00 pm  PST on December 5,  2024.  

Respondent Information 
Providing the following personal information is voluntary and you may leave these sections blank if 
you would like to remain anonymous. While the name of an organization, entity, or agency may 
become part of the public record and be included with the published responses to this RFI, please 
note that the personal information (name, email contact information) of individuals (i.e., natural 
persons) will not be disclosed or published with the responses and will not become part of the public 
record, except as authorized or required by law. However, you have the option of consenting to HCD 
disclosing and/or publishing your name when posting your response/comment as indicated below. If 
you would like to be added to HCD’s list of interested stakeholders who may be contacted as this 
development process pertaining to the identification of challenges and opportunities for adaptive 
reuse within the scope of AB 529 continues and progresses, please also indicate your preference in 
the section below. 

Name 
Organization/Entity/Agency or 
Affiliation 
Public Email Contact Information 
Add to Contact List ☐ ☐Yes  or  No

☐ (OPTIONAL) I consent to HCD disclosing and/or publishing my name when posting my
response/comment to this RFI.

Please provide Areas of Interest in Adaptive Reuse Report/Development Process: 
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Response 
Assembly Bill 529 includes specific issue areas that the working group may consider. Which of these 
does this specific response fall into? Please select a response from the following Area of Interest: 

1. Energy and Insulation Upgrades

 

 
       

 

               
   

       

               

             

2. Fire-rated Assemblies
3. Water and Sewer Piping

4. Energy infrastructure, including individual utility meter upgrades

5. Habitability

6. Any other local or state building requirement that may render the conversion or reuse of
an existing building financially infeasible for residential uses

What are the opportunities that help support adaptive reuse related to the topic selected above? 

What are the challenges to adaptive reuse related to the topic selected above? 
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Proposal 
If you are proposing - specific amendments to the building standards, or other related health and 
safety standards, please fill out the boxes below. 

Suggested Amendments or Description 

Rationale for Proposal 

Economic Impact of Proposal 

Describe if and how this proposal will impact any of the following: 

Will this proposal impact housing costs? 

Click here to select a response 

If yes: 
Describe the annual cost for each housing unit: 
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Will  this  proposal  impact  businesses  and  /  or  employees?  

CClick here to select a response. 

If yes: 

How many businesses would be impacted? 

Describe the types of businesses impacted. 

What would be the initial and annual ongoing costs to businesses impacted? 

Would this proposal impact small businesses? 

ClicClickk   herheree   toto   sseellecect t   aa   rresesponsponsee.   

If yes: 
How many small businesses would be impacted? 

What would be the initial and annual ongoing costs to businesses? 
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Will  this  proposal  have  an  impact  on  jobs  or  occupations?  

ClicClickk   herheree   toto   sseellecect t   aa   rresesponsponsee.   

Click here to a respons

Click here to a espons

If yes: 
How many jobs will be created? 

How many jobs will be eliminated? 

Describe the types of jobs or occupations impacted. 

Would this proposal affect the ability of California businesses to compete with other states? 

select eClick here to select a response. 

If yes, please explain briefly. 

Will this proposal have an impact on individuals? 

select rClick here to select a response.e 

If yes, please indicate initial and annual ongoing costs to individuals below. 

AB 529 Adaptive Reuse Working Group 
Request for Information Template Guideline 5 09/2024 



     

 
       

              
 

    

Economic Benefit of Suggested Amendments 

Describe the benefits of the suggested amendments to building standards, including but not limited 
to, the health and welfare of California residents and the environment, the total annual statewide 
benefit in dollars, and any expansion of businesses. 
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	AB 529 ADAPTIVE REUSE WORKING GROUP REQUEST FOR INFORMATION TEMPLATE GUIDELINE
	Respondent Information

	Name: Steven R Winkel, FAIA, PE, CASp
	OrganizationEntityAgency or Affiliation: American Institute of Architects,  California
	Public Email Contact Information: steve@swinkel-faia.com
	OPTIONAL I consent to HCD disclosing andor publishing my name when posting my: On
	Please provide Areas of Interest in Adaptive Reuse Report/Development Process:: * Review existing fire and life safety code requirements in relation to adaptive reuse of office buildings as housing and recommend necessary amendments. Use the development of the California Historical Building Code as a model for a perfromance based code for office to housing conversion of existing buildings.
* Coordination with other state agencies such as the State Fire Marshal, the Building Standards Commission and the Energy commission to facilitate adaptive reuse of existing buildings. Also involve local building regulators, design professionals and project developers - both for-profit and non-profit.

	What are the opportunities that help support adaptive reuse related to the topic selected above?: Fire and life safety codes encompass many more aspects of adaptive requse beyond those related to just fire-rated assemblies. Assessing codes comprehensively will provide the greatest opportunity for comprehensive solutions to the multiple issues raised by changing the use of existing buildings. The best model will be a performance based code focused on office to housing conversion of existing buildings.
	What are the challenges to adaptive reuse related to the topic selected above?: The buildings to be reused are all by definition existing buildings that will not be fully compliant with contemporary building codes. The change from office use to residential use entails the introduction of new daily routines. The primary changes related to fire and life safety are cooking and overnight sleeping. New uses must be examined for increases in hazards and mitigations must be suggested to reduce or eliminate hazards in an effective and cost-effective way. Simply applying current code provisions to new uses based on a change of occupancy will surely result in major revisions with costs that make re-use of existing buildings prohibitively expensive.  While many existing buildings may not be historic structures the principals found in the California Historical Building Code (CHBC) provide a good road map for devising a re-use code focused on the specific challenges and responses apprpriate to these buildings. The key to the CHBC is that it is performance based not prescriptive. It recognizes that each building as it exists will have unique opportunities and constraints on how best to achieve life safety for its new uses.

The preface to the CHBC states:
"The California Historical Building Code (CHBC) is unique
among state regulations. The authoring of the original CHBC
required state agencies promulgating regulations for building
construction to work in harmony with representatives of other
design and construction disciplines. The result was a totally
new approach to building codes for historical structures,
which maintains currently acceptable life–safety standards.

These regulations are also unique in that they are performance
oriented rather than prescriptive. The provisions of the
CHBC are to be applied by the enforcing authority of every
city, county, city and county, or state agency in permitting
repairs, alterations and additions necessary for the preservation,
rehabilitation, relocation, related construction, change of
use or continued use of a qualified historical building."

	Suggested Amendments or Description: I propose a statewide multidisciplinary commission be set up similar to the one that developed the California Historical Building Code to develop a specific adaptive reuse code for conversion of office buildings (B Occupancy) to multi-family residential buildings (R-2 Occupancy). Many of the most potentially successful of such conversions will already be eligible to use the CHBC since historic buildings often have configurations and floor plate sizes that are conducive to such conversions. These buildings are often widely divergent form contemporary code requirements but many have been successfully and safely converted to other uses. I suggest taking that model and disseminating the lessons learned under the CHBC to a wider pool of non-historic buildings. The structure used for the development of the CHBC can be a model. It is described in the Historical Preface to the CHBC as follows:

"The members of the advisory board, which were required by
law to include local and state building officials, individuals
from the building industry and design professions, as well as
representatives from city and county governments, were
appointed and held their first session in Sacramento, February
24, 1976. This Board’s duties included the preparation of
code regulations and the review of specific historic building
cases, when officially requested by governing bodies."

	Rationale for Proposal: The buildings in question are existing and the requirement for new code criteria should be based on performance, not a simple application of prescriptive standards promulgated in the building code to primarily be applied to newly constructed buildings. 
	Describe the annual cost for each housing unit:: This will reduce the cost of converting exsting B occupancy buildings to R-2 housing using performance criteria rather than requiring retrofit renovations to existing buildings using contemporary code prescriptive standards.
	What would be the initial and annual ongoing costs to businesses?: Reduction in permitting costs for less complex renovations, reduction in construction costs for performance based designs. Increase in ongoing income based on renting or selling housing instead of maintaining low occupancy office spaces.
	How many small businesses would be impacted?: Dozens of small housing developers, contractors and subcontractors for housing conversion work.
	How many businesses would be impacted?: Potentially hundreds throughout the state. Will also facilitate revitalization of downtown office areas with new long-term residences.
	Describe the types of businesses impacted: Low, affordable and moderate cost housing will be fostered by development and application of performance based housing adaptation criteria for office buiding conversion.
	What would be the initial and annual ongoing costs to businesses impacted?: Lowered costs of renovation based on tailored performance criteria for existing buildings versus over-application of contemporary code requirments more tailored to new building construction. 
	Describe the benefits of the suggested amendments to building standards,: The tailoring of performance codes to existing buidings will promote conversions and increase the density of downtown populations. Downtowns will feel more vital and not half empty. Increae in resdientail density will attract services for both residents and offices: retail, food service, groceries and office uses. 
	If yes, please indicate initial and annual ongoing costs to individuals below: Better live/work balance as workers can live closer to their offices. Better services in downtown due to increase in populations to be served. Better morale in office buildings as fuller spaces will feel more vital and services will increase to meet needs of more dense population.
	If yes, please explain briefly: Will increase density of residents downtown in converted buldings. Will decrease costs and pollution of commuting since residents can live near office jobs. Increase income in non-converted buildings as office over supply is reduced by conversions. Increase vitality of downtowns due to population increase, more services for residents and for tourists.
	Describe the types of jobs or occupations impacted: Increase in construction jobs for conversions, increase in service jobs for those serving new residents.
	How many jobs will be eliminated?: Few - conversions will be taking place in low occupancy office buildings. Those office worker discplaced can increase occupancy in unconverted office buildings.
	How many jobs will be created?: Increased work for contractors and subcontractors used for housing conversion. Will maintain jobs in downtown areas to served new residents versus missing office tenants.
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